#### BY-LAWS FOR TREELINE TRAILS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

# ARTICLE I. PURPOSES

- Section 1. The purposes of this non-profit corporation shall be:
- (a) The management, maintenance and upkeep of the common areas in Treeline Trails Subdivision;
- (b) The maintenance and upkeep of any and all common recreation facilities located in Treeline Trails Subdivision;
- (c) To exercise all power and authority vested in said Association for the purpose of promoting the health, education and welfare of the Association members.
- Section 2. This corporation shall be a non-profit, non-political, non-sectarian organization.

# ARTICLE II. OFFICES

- Section 1. <u>Principal Office:</u> The principal office of the corporation shall be located at 6596 Alley Road, Summerfield, NC 27358.
- Section 2. Registered Office: The registered office of the corporation shall be as required by law and shall be maintained as provided in the Articles of Incorporation.
- Section 3. Other Offices: The corporation may have offices at such other places, either within or without the State of North Carolina, as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, or as the affairs of the corporation may require.

# ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP

The membership of the corporation shall be as determined by the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and shall encompass each and every owner of every lot in said subdivision, with said membership being appurtenant to and not separable from said lot ownership, with said classes and members are as established in the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.

## ARTICLE IV. MEETINGS

Section 1. <u>Place of Meetings:</u> All meetings of the members shall be held at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as shall be designated in the notice of the meeting or agreed upon by a majority of the members entitled to vote thereat.

Section 2. <u>Annual Meetings:</u> Annual meetings of the members shall be held on the first Saturday of March of each year, or as soon thereafter as shall be feasible on an appropriate date as selected by the Board, for the purpose of electing Directors of the corporation and for the transaction of such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting.

Section 3. <u>Substitute Annual Meeting</u>: If the annual meeting shall not be held as designated by these By-Laws, a substitute annual meeting may be called in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Article. A meeting so called shall be designated and treated for all purposes as the annual meeting.

Section 4. <u>Special Meetings</u>: Special meetings may be called by the President or upon written application of not less than 25% of the voting members made to the Secretary, who shall mail notices to all members not less than one week prior to the meeting stating the purpose of the meeting.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings: Written or printed notice stating the time and place of the meeting shall be delivered not less than fifteen nor more than sixty days before the date thereof, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the President, the Secretary or other persons calling the meeting, to each member of record entitled to vote at such meeting. In the case of an annual or substitute annual meeting, the notice of meeting need not specifically state the business

to be transacted thereat unless it is a matter, other than the election of Directors, on which the vote of the members is expressly required by the provisions of the North Carolina Business Corporation Act. In the case of a special meeting, the notice of meeting shall specifically state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. When a meeting is adjourned for less than thirty days in any one adjournment, it is not necessary to give any notice of the adjourned meeting other than by announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken.

Section 6. Quorum: A majority of the voting members represented either in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum at meetings of the members. If no quorum is present at a meeting, no business shall be transacted and the meeting shall be adjourned. The members at a meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of members such as to leave less than a quorum. These By-Laws shall also be subject to the quorum requirements of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.

Section 7. <u>Informal Action by Members:</u> Any action which may be taken at a meeting of the members may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the members who are entitled to vote upon such action at a meeting, and filed with the Secretary of the corporation to be kept in the corporate Minute Book.

### ARTICLE V. DIRECTORS

Section 1. <u>General Powers and Numbers:</u> The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by the Board of Directors which shall consist of not less than three in number. Each Director shall hold office until his death, resignation, retirement, removal or his successor is elected and qualified. Directors need not be members of the corporation.

- Section 2. <u>Election of Directors:</u> The Directors to serve for the initial year shall be as shown in the Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, the Directors shall be elected in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and shall be elected at the annual meeting; in the event there is a vacancy, such vacancy shall be filled by a special meeting of the members to be called by the President within thirty days after such vacancy on the Board of Directors occurs.
- Section 3. Removal: Directors may be removed from office with or without cause by a vote of the majority of the members at an election of Directors. If any Directors are so removed, new Directors may be elected at the same meeting.
- Section 4. <u>Chairman</u>: There shall be a Chairman of the Board of Directors elected by the Directors from their number at any meeting of the Board. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and perform such other duties as may be directed by the Board.
- Section 5. <u>Compensation:</u> The Board of Directors shall not be compensated, but may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in attending regular and special meetings of the Board and reimbursed for other expenses incurred in rendering on behalf of the Association.

# ARTICLE VI. MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. Regular Meetings: A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at least quarterly.
- Section 2. <u>Special Meetings:</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors.
- Section 3. Notice of Meetings: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice. The person or persons calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors shall, at least two days before the meeting, give notice thereof by any usual means of communication.

The notice, place and date of any special meeting of the Board of Directors may be waived by written consent of all of the Directors.

Section 4. Quorum: A majority of the Directors fixed by these By-Laws shall constitute a quorum which shall be necessary for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 5. <u>Informal Action by the Directors</u>: Action taken by a majority of the Directors without a meeting is nevertheless Board Action if written consent to the action in question is signed by all of the Directors and filed in the Minutes of the proceedings of the Board when done before or after the actions are taken.

#### ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS

Section 1. Number: The officers of the corporation shall consist of a President, Vice-President and Secretary/Treasurer and such other officers as the Board of Directors may from time to time elect. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person except the offices of President and Secretary and all officers shall be selected from and be members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Election and Term: The officers of the corporation shall be elected by the Board of Directors. Such election may be held at any regular or special meeting of the Board. Each officer shall hold office until his death, resignation, retirement, removal or his successor is elected and qualified.

- Section 3. Removal: Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board with or without cause.
- Section 4. <u>Compensation</u>: The officers of the corporation shall serve without compensation.
- Section 5. <u>President:</u> The President shall be the principal executive officer of the corporation, subject, however, to the control of the Board of Directors, and shall supervise and control the management of the corporation in accordance with these By-Laws. He shall sign, with any other

proper officer, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments which may be lawfully executed on behalf of the corporation, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except where the signing and execution thereof shall be delegated by the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent; and, in general, he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 6. <u>Vice-President:</u> The Vice-President shall, in the absence or disability of the President, perform the duties and exercise the powers of that office. In addition, the Vice-President shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors shall prescribe.

Secretary/Treasurer: The Secretary shall keep accurate records of the acts and proceedings of all meetings of the members and Directors and give notices required by law and by the By-Laws. He shall be in charge of the corporate books and records and shall affix the corporate seal to any lawfully executed instrument requiring said seal. He shall also have charge of the membership books and shall sign such instruments as may be required by his signature and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the President or the Board of Directors, together with having such duties as Treasurer as keeping full and accurate accounts of the finances of the corporation and in general performing all duties incident to the office of the Treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Assistant Secretaries and Treasurers: Assistant Secretaries and Treasurers shall, in the absence or disability of the Secretary or Treasurer, perform the duties and exercise the powers of those offices.

# ARTICLE VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Check: All checks, drafts and other orders for payment issued in the name of the corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents, of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Amendments: These By-Laws may be amended or repealed and new By-Laws made or adopted by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Directors then holding office at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.